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The governors present their annual report together with the consolidated accounts and independent auditor's report 
of the charitable company for the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025. The annual report serves the 
purposes of both a trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law. 
 
Charlton Park Academy Trust currently operates a single split site Special Residential Academy, through our own 
admission arrangements. Charlton Park Academy Trust wants to expand and work within local primary schools and 
LARPS, where surplus accommodation and places could exist due to the plummeting birth rates in London. We are 
constrained by lack of further accommodation (which we have requested) from the Local authority for many years. 
RBG currently has substantial unmet place demand for primary and secondary SEND places. CPA offers to provide 
capital support for our expansion plans and has reserves set aside to adapt mainstream buildings and available 
accommodation for this purpose. We are not able to confirm our bid for significant change to include primary SEND 
without written DfE and LA approval but have broad support from primary school community locally to provide such 
places urgently. We seek to broaden our age range to include primary age pupils, so we can meet SEND needs 
earlier as many young people currently wait for up to 5 years for a specialist SEND place with us, with needs not 
fully met. Until we receive Regional Director/DfE approval we cannot expand further. Additionally, we provide 
extensive high quality national advisory SEND support services with outreach AAC and communication aid 
educational support to DfE and 36 local authorities and 450 mainstream and specialist schools directly, by supporting 
inclusion and curriculum access via IT, AAC and specialist software training. The national project we provide 
commissioned support for the DfE supports over 4000 schools. Using our in-house expertise and with new 
partnerships are expanding our SEND Specialist SEND network and support Inclusion through enhanced national 
and regional SEND specialist support services and the national SEND improvement plan. 
 
Structure, governance and management 
Constitution 
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital (registration no. 08133047) and an 
exempt charity.  The charitable company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing 
documents of the Academy.  The Governors act as the Trustees for the charitable activities of Charlton Park and 
some are also Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.  The charitable company is 
known as Charlton Park.  Details of the Governors who served throughout the period, except as noted, are included 
in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. 
 
Charlton Park was incorporated on 6 July 2012 and obtained Academy status from 01 August 2012.  Included within 
the consolidated financial statements is Charlton Parkside, a 100% owned subsidiary of Charlton Park Academy. 
 
Members' liability 
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the 
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such 
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a 
member. 
 
Principal activities 
The principal activity of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in 
particular, but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, 
managing and developing an Academy offering a broad and balanced relevant curriculum. 
 
Method of recruitment and appointment or election of members and governors 
The number of Governors shall be not less than three but (unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution) shall 
not be subject to any maximum. Subject to Articles 48-49 and 64, the Academy Trust shall has following constituents 

 Governors: up to 8 Governors, appointed under Article 50; 
 2 Parent Governors appointed under Articles 53-58; 
 up to 2 Staff Governors, subject to Article 50A; 
 the Principal; 
 any Additional Governors, if appointed under Article 62, 62A or 68A; 
 any Further Governors, if appointed under Article 63 or Article 68A. 
 The Academy Trust may also have any Co-opted Governor appointed under Article 59. 

 
Each of the persons entitled to appoint members above shall have the right, from time to time by written notice 
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delivered to the office, to remove any member appointed by them and to appoint a replacement member to fill a 
vacancy whether resulting from such removal or otherwise. The term of office for any Governor shall be 4 years, 
save that this time limit shall not apply to the Principal. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of 
Governor, any Governor may be re-appointed or re-elected. 
 
Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of governors 
The Full Governing Body met 4 times during the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025. Training and induction 
were provided for new Trustees. New Trustees tour the Academy and meet with key staff and students. Trustees 
were provided access to copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents 
that they need. All Trustees must attend relevant meetings regularly, follow identified training directed by the board 
and must keep up to date with national educational developments. 
 
Organisational structure 
The structure consists of three levels: Trust Governors, Strategic Leadership Team, and Management Team 
Leaders. The purpose of the management structure is to set strategy, control costs, set priorities and focus strategic 
decisions and direction, encourage staff engagement, professional responsibility and ensure targets are met. 
 
The Members, Trustees and Governors are responsible for setting standards, general policy, adopting an annual 
plan and budget, monitoring the Academy outcomes. They plan and approve the appropriate use of financial and 
human resources, make major strategic decisions regarding future direction of the Academy Trust, capital 
expenditure, workforce structure and senior appointments. 
 
The Strategic Leadership Team currently comprises of the Principal/Accounting officer and Senior Vice Principal. 
The Accounting officer is responsible for Trust accounts and appointment of staff. Resources Committee monitors 
spending via monthly management accounts, cash flow forecasts, government returns and grants. Senior Vice 
Principal is directly responsible for school educational standards, leading safeguarding, ensuring high quality of 
teaching, learning & assessment of educational standards & outcomes. 
 
 
Arrangements for Executive Pay 
Arrangements for making any change to pay and remuneration of key management personnel will go through the 
Pay Committee and must be approved by the full board of trustees in line with AHB 2025. However, our Trust policy 
is that, apart from any agreed cost-of-living increases, there will be no scale point, nor leadership spine point 
movement of school leadership team members. If the performance of the school management team were judged 
inadequate by Ofsted, then Trustees expect salary sacrifice by those accountable across the Trust management 
and leadership team. 
 
Related parties and other connected charities and organisations 
Charlton Park Academy Trust is an active member of wider specialist SEND networks including Equals, Challenge 
Partners, ASDAN, NASEN, National College, SSAT, London Grid and CST, all of which are independent charitable 
organisations working collaboratively within the SEND and mainstream community. Transactions with these bodies 
are at the same rate as for other similar organisations.  
 
Trade union facility time 
 
No union officials were employed during the year. 
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Objectives and activities 
Objects and aims 
Charlton Park Academy is a mixed 11-19 special needs Academy which sees its strong pastoral, vibrant, innovative, 
and inclusive culture as the most important of its many strengths.  We foster care, nurture, support, and respect for 
all students. 
 
The main objectives of the Academy are summarised below: 
 
a) To advance a high-quality education and as a public service a ‘Special Residential Academy’ organised to create 
outstanding and innovative special educational facilities provision for pupils with Special Educational Needs. 
 
b) To provide for the benefit of our SEND community, highly specialised accessible facilities for recreation, leisure, 
learning and support for those who have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, 
financial hardship, or social and economic circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare 
and with the object of improving quality of life and opportunity. 
 

Objectives, strategies, and activities 

Our community values opportunity, diversity and we seek to reduce barriers and give everyone an equal chance to 
learn, work and live, free from the action, or fear, of racism, discrimination, or prejudice. Our trust supports our 
community and their specialist needs. 
 
Our students celebrate and enjoy all types of religious and non-religious festivals as well as participation in public 
events such as Children in Need and Anti-Bullying Week. We involve our staff and students in fund raising activities 
for hospice care and a variety of worthy causes such as Macmillan Cancer Support and support National mental 
health and wellbeing initiatives to ensure that our teaching and support staff are valued and are well supported. 
 
Our SEN students’ achievements and talents are celebrated through many modern creative mediums such as 
Instagram, website, digital media, web presence, newsletter, international visitors, poetry, Art exhibitions, music, 
visual arts, including innovative use of augmentative communication and the spoken, signed and sung words. These 
are shared with our community through our website. Quality of art teaching is exceptional. Our website helps show 
the huge range of creative and enriching fun that our students get involved with, both demonstrating and motivating 
each other thus enhancing their strong desire for inclusion, learning and celebration. 
 
We aim to support self-actualisation, to develop and prepare our students for adult life, to enhance their potential 
academically, physically, socially, culturally, and psychologically. Students enjoy huge variety of activities to develop 
and nurture interests in other areas that they will be able to sustain within the community and for adult life. Activities 
range from numerous sporting challenges, personal fitness to creating sensory stories, so our students’ needs are 
supported very well to improve their independence skills and ability to sustain lifelong interests and activities. 
 
Staff are encouraged to develop further as self-directed, reflective learners, through working collaboratively with 
each other, and by using coaching strategies to enhance their own expertise. We have extensive CPD on offer. 
Through their passions and interests, teachers and support staff enthuse and inspire others to explore new ideas 
and explore and try new mediums to create new learning pathways.  
 
Parents and carers generally enjoy good relationships, and we encourage open communication with our staff. We 
have developed effective parent partnerships and listen to suggestions for improvements, whilst minimalizing our 
mistakes. We are developing My Learning Journey plans, which help personalise pathways that support the 
aspirations of young people with their families for future life and enrich experiences to develop skills and knowledge. 
All parents are encouraged to give feedback and seek to address any complaints or concerns quickly and promptly 
by reporting concerns directly when they arise. 
 
Trustees support and hold to account the Trust management team to ensure expected standards are met or 
exceeded., We share knowledge, experience, and SEND system expertise, providing outwardly facing advice and 
consultancy support. 
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Public benefit 
The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission's general 
guidance on Public Benefit when reviewing the charity's aim and objectives and in planning future activities. In 
particular, the Trustees considers how planned activities will contribute to the aims and objectives set. 

 
 
Strategic report 
Achievements and performance 
Review of 2024/25 
 
Personalised individual tracking occurs, with monitoring peer reviewed. Students make secure, good, or better 
progress. Tracking data is used to demonstrate individual student cumulative progress over time and use of 
knowledge and skills to widen and enhance skills learnt at CPA translated into everyday life. Reading has been 
encouraged for all and enhanced through CPD for all student facing staff, with library and learning resources 
developed further. 
 
Our pupil attendance is high in general, most pupils love coming to school. Lower rates of fixed exclusions and no 
permanent exclusions took place. We provide individualised specialist positive behaviour support plans at as early 
stage as possible and adopt a multi-agency sensory approach. Adaptions made in teaching and learning strategies 
ensure communication and special needs are well met. Staff work & advocate proactively for students with families, 
social care, health professionals, and education departments. 
 
Target areas to 2032 

 Consistently improve student outcomes, provide outstanding SEND facilities, improve outcomes by 
developing our workforce to consistently deliver high quality teaching & learning and by preparing young 
people well for adult life, co-developing outcomes with young people and their families. 

 Strengthen trust leadership and management effectiveness, support positive mental health, wellbeing 
through improving staff collaboration through teamwork, through high-quality personalised support, 
developing positive outcomes for disabled young people and more effective pathways to employment and 
transition to adult life. 

 Support regional SEND growth, by working with DfE and LA commissioners, growing our Trust throughout 
London South region and working with a range of schools in new and innovative ways to support inclusion.  
 

Key performance indicators 
 Achievement – students achieve and maximise their personal potential as young adults. 
 Quality of Teaching & Assessment – teaching well, demonstrating impact to create positive outcomes. 
 Behaviour, Health, and Safety –supporting independence and self-management of communication, 

behaviour and keeping themselves safe. 
 Quality of Leadership and Management –support effective teamwork and collaboration by creating effective 

learning partnerships with a range of other providers. 
 Overall Effectiveness – Provide efficient and effective SEND places and services and meet expected 

standards. 
 
Going concern 
After making appropriate tests and enquiries, the trust board has a reasonable expectation that the Academy trust 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Reserves are ringfenced to 
support expected expansion of current facilities, acquisition, and refurbishment of new accommodation to support 
SEND place growth, improving therapeutic facilities, IT & security and these require significant capital expenditure. 
We continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing our consolidated financial statements which can be found 
in the Statement of Accounting Policies. 
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Financial review 
Financial report for the year 
Most of the Academy's income is obtained from the Department for Education (DfE) (formerly ESFA) in the form of 
recurrent grants, some of which are restricted to particular purposes.  The grants received from the DfE/ESFA during 
the period ended 31 August 2025 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of 
Financial Activities. Majority of our income is generated via place and high needs top up funding allocated for 
students from local authorities and commissioned places. Projected numbers indicates very strong demand for 
SEND places with significant further growth required over the next 10 years based upon demographic regional 
growth, thus securing sufficient income over time to sustain income levels. Adjustments in national funding formula 
will be gradual and predictable, which will allow strategic adjustments in allocation of spend. Detailed review of 
benchmarking information has indicated potential areas of further cost savings to ensure a balanced budget. Capital 
investments into further energy saving infrastructure will provide longer term reduction in accommodation costs, 
which prevents unnecessary recurrent expenditure and focuses future allocated resources on student centred 
services and facilities for the 21st Century and digital futures in the community. Significant costs were incurred to 
improve energy efficiency, accommodation, play facilities and protect young people from sun and extreme weather 
being experienced. 
 
The Academy also receives small grants for fixed assets from the DfE. In accordance with the Charities Statement 
of Recommended Practice, 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities' (SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the 
Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund.  The restricted fixed asset fund balance 
is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned. 
 
During the period ended 31 August 2025, total expenditure of £11,920k (2024: 11,077k) was met by recurrent grant 
funding from the DfE/ESFA together with other incoming resources. The excess of income over expenditure for the 
year (excluding restricted fixed asset funds and transfers to restricted fixed asset funds) was £2,300k (2024: £499k). 
 
On 31 August 2025, the net book value of fixed assets was £24,230k (2024: £24,452k). Movements in tangible fixed 
assets are shown in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. The assets provided SEN education and 
support. 
 
The Royal Borough of Greenwich Pension Fund showed a nil balance on 31 August 2025 (2024: -£605k). 
 
Financial position 
The Academy held fund balances on 31 August 2025 of £29,647k (2024: £27,760k) comprising of £24,230k 
restricted funds (2024: £23,847k) and £5,417k (2024: £3,913k) of unrestricted general funds. Of the restricted funds, 
£24,230k (2024: £24,452k) is represented by tangible fixed assets. The subsidiary company held general reserves 
of £ (31)k (2024: £(1)k) included within the consolidated accounts.  
 
The pension reserve which is considered part of restricted funds was nil (2024: -£605k). 
 
Reserves policy 
The Governors review the reserve levels of the Academy regularly.  This review encompasses the nature of income 
and expenditure streams, match of top up income with known staffing commitments, significant capital expenditure 
identified within condition surveys, essential and desirable works and required reserves.  Governors have 
determined that the appropriate level of ‘free’ reserves should be equivalent to three months' staffing expenditure, 
approximately £2.1m to allow for suitable contingencies to be held, outside of our ringfenced capital expenditure 
which is to be drawn down and implemented within next two years. Planned capital works need significant allocations 
from reserves and therefore reserve levels appear high. However, further energy reduction, insulation, security, 
safety and planned infrastructure needs remain very high, particularly given our main building built in 1968 is not 
covered by any capital grant income and our main infrastructure is at the end of 60 year planned life. Building 
refurbishment, replacement, restoration with maintenance will utilize most of our current reserves to ensure main 
building fit for purpose for future generations of complex SEND places.. 
 
The Academy's current level of free reserves of £5,417k (2024 £3,913k) (total funds less the amount held in fixed 
assets and restricted funds) will support expansion, increase management capacity, provide for the necessary 
capital improvements, with sufficient resources to support expansion of Trust, improve suitable expansion of open 
free specialist school, develop inclusion specialist services, enhance teaching and learning facilities, improving 
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energy efficiency utilizing solar generation, battery installation, grid use reduction and improved ventilation. 
 
Investment policy 
Under the Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Academy has the power to invest funds not immediately 
required for its own purposes, in any way the Governors see fit. The organisation has a positive cash balance to 
cover eventualities and unforeseen expenses.  The banking facilities are reviewed on a regular basis. 
 
Principal risks and uncertainties 
The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, those relating to the specific 
teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Academy, and its finances. The Trustees have 
implemented many systems to reduce risks that the school faces, especially in the operational areas (e.g. in relation 
to teaching, health and safety, safeguarding) and in relation to the control of finance. The Trustees have introduced 
operational procedures and internal financial controls to minimise risk. Where significant financial risk remains, they 
have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The Academy has an effective system of internal financial 
controls, and this is explained in more detail in the Governance Statement on page 10. 
 
The principal risks to maintaining budget balance are the DfE reducing net present value of current grants received, 
LA reduction of delegated top up funding, together with outgoings exceeding income. The Academy has completed 
risk audits in line with guidance. Adjustments in spend have been made to improve efficiency and reduce risks to 
acceptable operational levels. Staffing must be deployed flexibly, whilst educational needs deepen across the school 
severity and complexity have increased. The provision of direct health services by others, has also reduced year by 
year. Increased costs of therapeutic and specialist training time are required throughout the year for staff skills 
development to ensure high quality and relevant education. This expertise is essential to ensure needs are well met. 
 
We plan our budget taking account of all known major pressures and predicable pressures. Strategic investment 
into aging infrastructure, priority investment, decarbonisation, and planned maintenance remains priority, to ensure 
that our accommodation is fully fit for current and future purposes. Sufficient capital reserves are held and spent 
accordingly. The late 1960’s building is expensive to maintain. We have not closed any area due to RAAC. We 
continue to invest heavily into renewable energy strategies to mitigate the energy needs of complex SEND. We 
expect to invest further in this area to reduce carbon emissions and reduce dependency on gas and grid electric. 
 
The principal risks and uncertainties that Charlton Park Trust faces are fully mitigated by our risk management 
approach and current strategies. 
 
 
Financial and risk management goals and policies 
The financial risks to which Charlton Park Academy is exposed to relate primarily to: 
 

 Increases in staff costs with insufficient increases in income. 
 Risk arises in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme for support staff. 

 
Fundraising 
The Academy Trust does not employ any professional fundraisers to fund raise on its behalf, but all staff members 
and any volunteers involved in fundraising activities are trained in accordance with recognised standards to ensure 
that the public, including vulnerable people, are protected from unreasonable or intrusive approaches. The Academy 
Trust has not received any complaints about its fund-raising activities. 
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Plans for future periods 
The Trustees work with commissioners to increase total high need complex SEN places in London, and SE England. 
We will continue to develop relationships with Commissioners, schools, and local authorities. There is known and 
identified unmet need and demand for high quality specialist SEN places across our region. 
 

Our Academy Trust makes provision for personalised learning, support, and intervention programmes for 
individual students. Safeguarding and quality of care of high standards thanks to bespoke programmes aimed at 
raising achievement and meeting individual care needs. We have high aspirations for developing strong 
personalised health outcomes and wellbeing plans. We are combining our strengths with the national priorities in 
health, education, and wellbeing to create an integrated offer. We have a strong community focus and strive to be 
an effective and thriving hub for our wider community through our SEN activities and events increasing parental 
engagement and participation. 

 
In our special Academy, all families are carers. Our students need the support of family and wider community moving 
into their adult lives. Preparation and transition into adult life is a vital part of the Academy's role. Good governance 
of the Academy to meet these ends, depends on a proper reflection of needs and aspirations of the whole Academy 
community. This is best reflected by embedding co-operative values into the ethos and development with aspirations 
of associated partners in adult social care and continuing care and integrated health. 
 
The Academy strives to improve the levels of performance of all students and to ensure appropriate access to further 
19-25 education, opportunities, and training for all students to continue building upon knowledge, skills and 
experience gained at Charlton Park. We try to support young people that have left our school suitable opportunities 
and support with practical advice depending upon individual circumstances. 
 
 
 
 
 
Auditor 
In so far as the governors are aware: 
 -  there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and 
 -  the governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
 information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. 
 
The governors' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of governors, as the 
company directors, on 10 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
………………………….. ………………………… 
G Harknett  LC Hage 
Co-Chair  Co-Chair 
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___________________________________________________________________________________________
_ 
 
Scope of responsibility 
As governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Charlton Park Academy has an 
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage 
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 
 
The board of governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the principal, as accounting officer, for 
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in 
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Charlton 
Park Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible for reporting to 
the board of governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 
 
Governance 
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors' Report and in the 
Statement of Governors' Responsibilities. The board of governors has formally met 4 times during the year. 
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of governors was as follows: 
 

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible 
M Dale Emberton (Accounting officer) 4 4 
J Firth 3 4 
L C Hage (Co-Chair) 4 4 
G Harknett (Co-Chair) 2 4 
M Lewis 4 4 
O Olafuyi (Term ended on 09.02.25) 0 1 
S Richardson  4 4 
J Zarb  4 4 
S Johnson 4 4 
N Kandel 4 4 

 
The board remains stable and recruits carefully to ensure governors have necessary skills and expertise in finance 
and personnel in particular. The board’s performance is effective. This view is taken by annual assessment of its 
effectiveness against NGA criteria. School improvement partners also review performance. It has also 
commissioned expert advice, has taken the advice of auditors and improves systems of financial control and 
expenditure in line with Academy directives from the DfE. 
 
Conflicts of interest 
Care is taken to prevent any conflicts of interest arising by ensuring that the register of interests is maintained and 
any new contractor vetted prior to commissioned work commencing.  If a conflict arose, any such procurement 
approver or potential conflict of interest, would be excluded from the process and not take part in the procurement 
process at all. 
 
Governance reviews 
As an established Academy trust we review skills, experiences and competence and training on an annual basis 
against national standards. As a result of our audit in the last year, governor training included Data Protection and 
GDPR to reduce risks of data breach and loss with Trustees and senior management staff. Governor papers are 
now all sent much more securely, and less risk of data breach now exists. Following revisions in the Academy 
Directions 2025, together with any audit recommendations, actions, training, and implementation will take place in 
2025/26. 
 
Our committees meet regularly, reviewing management reports monthly to discharge their responsibilities and 
ensure robust governance, self-evaluation, and effective management arrangements. Board meetings take place at 
least four times a year and the sub-committee structure is effective by utilizing resource, personnel, premises, and 
educational standards committees. Meetings attended between officers and board members are sufficient to ensure 
that the necessary due diligence is maintained and established under the Academies direction orders. Care is taken 
to prevent any conflicts of interest arising by ensuring that the register of interests is maintained and any new 
contractor vetted prior to commissioned work commencing. Register is kept up to date. 
The Resources Committee is a subcommittee of the main Governing Body. Its terms of reference are as follows: 
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 To review the staffing structure of the Academy, monitor the financial performance, review the personnel 

policies, and advise the Governing Body accordingly on their findings. 
 To establish and maintain appropriate terms and conditions of staff employment, training and development 

and oversee recruitment, performance monitoring, absence management, disciplinary procedures, and 
severance procedures in accordance with the delegated arrangements. 

 To examine financial plans and propose to the Governing Body a draft annual budget for the Academy for 
each year. 

 To establish and maintain an up-to-date three-year financial plan. 
 To ensure that proper financial procedures are in place and operating in accordance with the Academy’s 

Finance Procedures. 
 To monitor expenditure and income monthly and report on progress and variations to the Governing Body. 
 To ensure that financial and personnel decisions and policies conform to Health & Safety requirements and 

regulations and Equalities Law, plus standards and policies areas properly set 
 To advise the Governing Body on priorities, including Health and Safety, for the maintenance and 

development of the Academy’s premises, overseeing arrangements for repairs, maintenance, and premises-
related funding bids, and to decide on premises-related expenditure within the agreed budget. 

 To oversee arrangements, including Health and Safety, for the use of Academy premises by outside users, 
subject to governing body policy; and 

 To establish and keep under review an Accessibility Plan. 
 
Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 
 

Governors Meetings attended Out of possible 
M Dale Emberton (Accounting officer) 4 4 
J Firth 3 4 
L C Hage (Chair) 4 4 
G Harknett  0 4 
M Lewis 2 4 
S Richardson 2 4 

 
Review of value for money 
As accounting officer, the principal has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the 
use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider 
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. 
 
The accounting officer considers how the academy trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money 
during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including 
the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved 
value for money during the year by: 
 

 Review of staffing costs secured savings and identified further efficiencies and improvements. 
 Reviewed of the Scheme of Delegation. 
 Improved health and safety for our vulnerable young people by improved outdoor sun protection. 
 Improved our play facilities for our young people to enhance mental health and wellbeing following reduced 

opportunities during the pandemic. 
 Reviewed and revised existing contracts and services. 
 Undertaken strategic review of our Estate in terms of accommodation, facilities, liabilities and commenced 

the long-term targeted improvements identified on improving energy efficiency, cyclical maintenance, 
undertaking preventative maintenance to ensure that our facilities are safe, well maintained, and compliant 
with regulations. 

 Site fencing has been further upgraded. 
 Site has been surveyed for RAAC, and none has been or was identified as present.  
 Security reviews and visitor management have also been undertaken.  
 External site CCTV quality has been improved. 
 Further expansion and refurbishment include planned works to improve and reduce identified risks will take 

place over next five years funded from capital reserves and assets 
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The purpose of the system of internal control 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise 
the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks 
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
The system of internal control has been in place in Charlton Park Academy for the period 1 September 2024 to 31 
August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and consolidated accounts. 
 
Capacity to handle risk 
The board of governors has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the 
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of 
governors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy 
trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 and up to the date 
of approval of the annual report and consolidated accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of 
governors. 
 
The risk and control framework 
The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information 
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In 
particular, it includes: 
 

 comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which 
are reviewed and agreed by the board of governors; 

 regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate financial 
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes; 

 setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 
 clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines; 
 identification and management of risks. 

 
The Governing Body has considered the need for a specific internal audit function. This function has been provided 
by SBS (School Business Services) commissioned as a function to support responsible accounting in line with DfE 
standards. 
 
Checks conducted in the current period include: 

 Testing of control systems 
 Testing of control account/ bank reconciliation 
 Review of policies and procedures and adherence thereon  

 
The internal auditor has completed their schedule of work as planned.  
 
No significant actions to remediate functions and systems have been recommended and minor improvements 
suggested are in hand and will be implemented next financial year. 
 
A range of risk audits were undertaken in line with good practice, including GDPR, data protection, safeguarding, 
fire protection, estates audit, ventilation and health and safety annually cycles are established and maintained. 
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The Trust confirms the internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned and raised no major or 
significant aspects. 
 
Other reviews that took place within the year include: 
 
Type of Review Reviewer 
Safeguarding External reviewer 
Safeguarding Internal review against audit tools 
Safeguarding External reviewer 
Health & Safety External review inc fire arrangements 
Support and Challenge Review- focused on quality of 
provision and outcomes, leading to areas for improvement 

Accounting officer, senior vice principal, and an 
external SIP reviewer. 

Peer Review Headteacher external to CPA Trust with SIP ongoing 
reviews of standards. 

 
Review of effectiveness 
As accounting officer the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 
During the year in question the review has been informed by: 
 

 the work of the internal auditor; 
 the work of the external auditor; 
 the financial management and governance self-assessment process; 
 the work of the executive managers within the Multi Academy Trust who have responsibility for the 

development and maintenance of the internal control framework. 
 
The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal 
control by the finance committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the 
system is in place. 
 
CPA Academy trust and board can confirm that the internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as 
planned, provided details of any significant control issues arising as a result of the internal auditor’s/reviewer’s 
work and, if relevant, describe what remedial action is being taken to rectify the issues. No major or significant 
items of concern have been identified. 
 
Conclusion  

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of 
the opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk 
management and control.  

 
 
Approved by order of the Board of Directors on 10 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 

Lynda Hage and Graham Harknett Mark Dale-Emberton 
Co-Chairs Accounting Officer 
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As accounting officer of Charlton Park Academy, I confirm that I have had due regard to the framework of authorities 
governing regularity, propriety and compliance, including the trust’s funding agreement with the Department for 
Education (DfE), and the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including responsibilities for estates safety 
and management. I have also considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of governors and DfE 
of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates 
safety and management. 
 
I confirm that I and the academy trust's board of governors are able to identify any material irregular or improper 
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the 
academy trust's funding agreement and the framework of authorities. 
 
I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or non-compliance have been discovered to date.  If 
any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of governors and DfE. 
 
 
 
………………………….. 
M Dale-Emberton 
Accounting Officer 
 
 
 
10 December 2025 
Date 
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The governors (who act as trustees for Charlton Park Academy and are also the directors of Charlton Park Academy 
for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the governors' report and the consolidated accounts 
in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 published by the Department for Education, 
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable 
law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the governors to prepare consolidated accounts for each financial year. Under company law, 
the governors must not approve the consolidated accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, 
including its income and expenditure, for that period. 
 
In preparing these consolidated accounts, the governors are required to: 
 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 

to 2025; 
 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the consolidated accounts; and 
 prepare the consolidated accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

charitable company will continue in business. 
 
The governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the consolidated accounts comply with the Companies Act 
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial 
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They 
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended. 
 
The governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included 
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination 
of consolidated accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
 
Approved by order of the members of the board of governors on 10 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………….. 
G Harknett 
Co Chair 
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Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Charlton Park Academy (the “parent charitable company”) 
and its subsidiary (the “group”) for the year ended 31 August 2025 which comprise the group statement of financial 
activities, the group balance sheet, the charitable company balance sheet, the group statement of cash flows and 
the charitable company statement of cash flows and the notes to the accounts, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), 
the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for 
Education. 
 
In our opinion the consolidated accounts: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group and charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2025 and 
of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year 
then ended; 

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; 
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and 
- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 

2024 to 2025. 
 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of 
the consolidated accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
In auditing the consolidated financial statements, we have concluded that the governors' use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and charitable company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report. 
 
Other information 
The governors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual 
report other than the consolidated accounts and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated 
accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated accounts or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 
misstatement in the consolidated accounts or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

- the information given in the governors' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year 
for which the consolidated accounts are prepared is consistent with the consolidated accounts; and 

- the governors' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with 
applicable legal requirements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of 
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the governors' report, including the incorporated strategic 
report. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires 
us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
 

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or returns adequate for 
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

- the consolidated accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
- certain disclosures of governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
Responsibilities of governors 
As explained more fully in the statement of governors' responsibilities, the governors are responsible for the 
preparation of the consolidated accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such 
internal control as the governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated accounts that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated accounts, the governors are responsible for assessing the academy trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the governors either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated accounts 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated accounts as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated accounts. 
 
Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in 
line with our responsibilities, outlined above and on the Financial Reporting Council’s website, to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. 
 
We obtain and update our understanding of the group, its activities, its control environment, and likely future 
developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framework applicable and how the group is complying 
with that framework.  Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  This 
includes consideration of the risk of acts by the group that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including 
fraud. 
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In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, we designed 
procedures which included:  
 

 Enquiry of senior leadership, Governors/Trustees and those charged with governance around actual and 
potential litigation and claims as well as actual, suspected and alleged fraud;  

 Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; 
 Assessing the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations considered to have a direct material effect 

on the consolidated financial statements or the operations of the company through enquiry and inspection;   
 Reviewing consolidated financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess 

compliance with applicable laws and regulations including compliance with the Academies Accounts Direction 
2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education;  

 Performing audit work over the recognition of grant income and the allocation of expenditure to funds; 
 Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and override of controls, including testing of journal 

entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the rationale of significant transactions outside 
the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for indicators of potential bias.  

 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those 
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation.  This risk increases 
the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the 
financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.  The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated accounts is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council’s website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
auditor's report 
 
Use of our report 
 
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable 
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable 
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Scott Browning FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
For and on behalf of Azets Audit Services  __ December 2025 
Chartered Accountants 
Statutory Auditor 
 First Floor, River House 
 1 Maidstone Road 
 Sidcup 
 Kent 
 DA14 5RH 
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 16 June 2025 and further to the requirements of the 
Department for Education (DfE) as included in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting 
Accountants of Academy Trusts, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the 
expenditure disbursed and income received by Charlton Park Academy during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 
August 2025 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to 
the authorities which govern them. 
 
This report is made solely to Charlton Park Academy and Secretary of State for Education in accordance with the 
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Charlton Park Academy 
and Secretary of State for Education those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Charlton Park 
Academy and Secretary of State for Education, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of Charlton Park Academy's accounting officer and the reporting accountant 
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Charlton Park Academy’s funding agreement with 
the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 August 2012 and the Academies Trust Handbook, extant from 1 
September 2024, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended 
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 
 
Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance, 
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of 
the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts. We report to 
you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, 
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not been 
applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which 
govern them. 
 
Approach 
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting 
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by DfE, which requires a limited assurance engagement as set out in our 
engagement letter. 
 
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and 
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on 
regularity. 
 
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that 
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 
 
Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the 
academy trust's income and expenditure. 
 
Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls, policies 
and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities including high 
level financial control areas and areas assessed of presenting a higher risk of impropriety. We undertook detailed 
testing, based on our assessment of risk of material irregularity, where such controls, policies and procedures apply 
to classes of transactions. This work was integrated with our audit on the consolidated financial statements to the 
extent evidence from the conduct of that audit supports the regularity conclusion as well as additional testing based 
on our assessment of risk of material irregularity. 
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Conclusion 
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the 
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 has not been 
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which 
govern them. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reporting Accountant 
Azets Audit Services 
First Floor  
River House 
1 Maidstone Road 
Sidcup 
Kent 
DA14 5RH 
United Kingdom 
 
 
Dated __ December 2025 
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 Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total 
 funds General Fixed asset 2025 2024 
     
 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Income and endowments from:  
Donations and capital grants 3 6 3 

 
15 24 21 

Charitable activities:  
- Funding for educational operations 4 - 10,908 - 10,908 8,244 
Other trading activities 5 2,141 - - 2,141 1,589 
Investments 6 44 - - 44 56 
 
            Total  2,191 10,911 15 13,117 9,910 
 
            Expenditure on:  
Charitable activities:  
- Educational operations 8 363 10,439 1,118 11,920 11,077 
 
            Total 7 363 10,439 1,118 11,920 11,077 
 
            

Net income/(expenditure)  1,828 472 (1,103) 1,197 (1,167) 
 

Transfers between funds 17 (324) (557) 881 - - 
 

Other recognised gains/(losses)  
Actuarial losses on defined benefit 
pension schemes 19 -

 
690 -

 
690 83

 
            Net movement in funds 1,504 605 (222) 1,887 (1,084) 
 

Reconciliation of funds  
Total funds brought forward  3,913 (605) 24,452 27,760 28,844 
 
            Total funds carried forward  5,417 - 24,230 29,647 27,760 
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Comparative year information  Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total 
Year ended 31 August 2024 funds General 2025 2024 
    
 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Income and endowments from: 
Donations and capital grants 3 - 5 

 
16 21 

Charitable activities: 
- Funding for educational operations 4 - 8,244 - 8,244 
Other trading activities 5 1,589 - - 1,589 
Investments 6 56 - - 56 
         Total  1,645 8,249 16 9,910 

         Expenditure on: 
Charitable activities: 
- Educational operations 8 290 9,105 1,682 11,077 
         Total 7 290 9,105 1,682 11,077 

         Net income/(expenditure)  1,355 (856)( (1,666) (1,167) 
Transfers between funds 17 (1,705) 831 874 - 
Other recognised gains/(losses) 
Actuarial losses on defined benefit 
pension schemes 19 -

 
83 - 

 
83 

         Net movement in funds (350) 58 (792)  (1,084)  
Reconciliation of funds 
Total funds brought forward  4,263 (663) 25,244 28,844 
         Total funds carried forward  3,913 (605) 24,452 27,760 
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 2025  2024  
 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Fixed assets  
Tangible assets 12  24,230 24,452 
 

Current assets  

Debtors 14 748 1,304 

Cash at bank and in hand  5,077 2,964 
 
       5,825 4,268 

Current liabilities  

Creditors: amounts falling due within one 
year 15 

 
(408)

 

    (345)

 

 
      Net current assets  5,417 3,923 
 
      Total assets less current liabilities  29,647 28,375 
 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more 
than one year 16 

 

-

 

(10)
 
      Net assets before defined benefit pension 
scheme liability 

 
29,647

 

28,365
 

 

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 19  - (605)
 
      Total net assets  29,647 27,760 
 
      Funds of the academy trust:  

Restricted funds 17  

- Fixed asset funds  24,230 24,452 
- Restricted income funds  - - 
- Pension reserve  - (605)
 
      Total restricted funds  24,230 23,847 
 

Unrestricted income funds 17  5,417 3,913 
 
      Total funds 29,647 27,760 
 
      The consolidated accounts on pages 22 to 57 were approved by the governors and authorised for issue on 10
December 2025 and are signed on their behalf by: 
 

 

 
  
…………………………  

 G Harknett  
 Co Chair  Company Number 08133047
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 2025  2024  
 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Fixed assets  
Tangible assets 12  24,230 24,445 
 

Current assets  

Debtors 14 748 1,304  
Cash at bank and in hand  5,048 2,959  
 
       5,796 4,263  
Current liabilities  
Creditors: amounts falling due within one 
year 15 

 
(348)

 
(339) 

 

 
      Net current assets  5,448 3,924 
 
      Total assets less current liabilities  29,678 28,369 
 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more 
than one year 16 

 
-
 

(10)
 
      Net assets before defined benefit pension 
scheme liability 

 
29,678

 
28,359

 

 

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 19  - (605)
 
      Total net assets  29,678 27,754 
 
      Funds of the academy trust:  
Restricted funds 17  
- Fixed asset funds  24,230 24,445 
- Restricted income funds  - - 
- Pension reserve  - (605)
 
      Total restricted funds  24,230 23,840 
 

Unrestricted income funds 17  5,448 3,914 
 
      Total funds 29,678 27,754 
 
      
The consolidated accounts on pages 22 to 57 were approved by the governors and authorised for issue on  
10 December 2025 and are signed on their behalf by: 
 

 

 
 
………………………..  
G Harknett  
Co Chair  
 Company Number 08133047 
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 2025 2024  
     
 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  
 
Cash flows from operating activities  
Net cash provided by operating activities 20  2,969 

 
 (223)  

 
Cash flows from investing activities  
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 44 

 
 56 

Capital grants from DfE Group 15  16 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 
 

 (896)
1

 (891) 
 

      Net cash used in investing activities  (837) (819) 
 
Cash flows from financing activities  
Repayment of other loan  (19) (19) 
 
      Net cash used in financing activities  (19) (19) 
 
      Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 
equivalents in the reporting period 

 
2,113 

 
(1,061) 

 

 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  2,964  4,025  
 
      Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  5,077  2,964  
 
      
 
Relating to: 
Bank and cash balances  3,104  1,035  
Short term deposits  1,973  1,929  
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 2025 2024  
     
 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  
 
Cash flows from operating activities  
Net cash provided by operating activities 20  2,945  (219)  
 
Cash flows from investing activities  
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 44  56 
Capital grants from DfE Group 15  16 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets  (896) (890) 
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets  - 1 
 
      Net cash used in investing activities  (837) (817) 
 
Cash flows from financing activities  
Repayment of other loan  (19) (19) 
 
      Net cash used in financing activities  (19) (19) 
 
      Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 
equivalents in the reporting period 

 
2,089 

 
(1,055) 

 

 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  2,959  4,014  
 
      Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  5,048  2,959  
 
      
 
Relating to: 
Bank and cash balances  3,075  1,030  
Short term deposits  1,973  1,929  
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1 Accounting policies 
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where 
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below 
 

1.1 Basis of preparation 
The consolidated accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been 
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their consolidated accounts in accordance with the 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 
102), the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by DfE, the Charities Act 2011 and the 
Companies Act 2006. 
 

1.2 Going concern 
The governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any material 
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable 
company to continue as a going concern. The governors make this assessment in respect of a period of at 
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the consolidated accounts and have concluded that 
the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and 
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. Thus they 
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated accounts. 
 

1.3 Basis of consolidation 
The financial statements consolidate on a line-by-line basis the results of the academy trust and Charlton 
Parkside.  A separate Statement of Financial Activities and income and expenditure account is not presented 
for the academy trust because of the exemptions available from Companies Act 2006 and paragraph 397 of 
the SORP. 
 

1.4 Income 
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is 
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. 
 
Grants 
Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income 
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance 
sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not 
unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred 
income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, 
the income is accrued. 
 
General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is 
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.  
 
Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts 
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are 
recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are 
expended. 
 

 Donations 
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where 
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. 
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1 Accounting policies (continued) 
 

 Other income 
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the 
academy trust has provided the goods or services. 
 

 Donated goods and facilities and services 
The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the academy trust are recognised at their open 
market value in the period in which they are receivable as incoming resources, where the benefit to the 
academy trust can be reliably measured. An equivalent amount is included as expenditure under the relevant 
heading in the statement of financial activities, except where the gift in kind was a fixed asset in which case 
the amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life 
in accordance with the academy trust's policies. 
 
Where it has been ascertained that the risks and rewards of property subject to long lease agreements lie 
substantially with the Academy, a reasonable estimate of the gross value is included within fixed assets and, 
with an appropriate credit to voluntary income (gift in kind), within the restricted fixed asset fund.  The valuation 
is at an estimation of depreciated replacement cost on the basis that the assets represent specialised property 
and the open market value for existing use is not readily available. 
 

 Interest receivable 
Interest receivable is included within the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis.  
 

 Donated fixed assets 
Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case 
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding 
amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in 
accordance with the academy trust‘s accounting policies. 
 

1.5 Expenditure 
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third 
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of the 
obligation can be measured reliably.  
 
Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and 
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single 
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and 
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis 
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and 
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use. 
 
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT 
 

 Expenditure on raising funds 
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and 
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading. 
 

 Charitable activities 
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs 
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities. 
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1 Accounting policies (continued) 

 
1.6 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation 

Tangible fixed assets acquired since the Academy was established are included in the accounts at cost. Assets 
costing less than £3,000 and a group of similar items costing £5,000 are written off in the period of acquisition. 
All other assets are capitalised. 
 
Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or 
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected 
useful economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial 
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted 
fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life 
of the related asset on a basis consistent with the academy trust's depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed 
assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted 
fund. 
 
The property has been included at the valuation provided by the ESFA when completing their desktop 
valuation. 
 
The academy has a 125 year lease on the land and buildings with the Royal Borough of Greenwich. 
 
Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on the cost of tangible fixed assets, to write them down to 
their estimated residual values over their expected useful lives.  The principal annual rates used for other 
assets are: 
 
Land and buildings  Buildings 2% to 5%, Land over life of lease (125 years) 
ICT Equipment 20% 
Fixtures and fittings 33.3% 
Motor vehicles 20% 
 
Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until 
they are brought into use. 
 
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets 
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.  Impairment losses are recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Activities.  
 

1.7 Liabilities 
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it 
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement 
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay 
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must 
provide. 
 

1.8 Leased assets 
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

1.9 Financial instruments 
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and 
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows. 
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1 Accounting policies (continued) 

 
 Financial assets 

Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost. 
Prepayments are not financial instruments.  
 
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. 
 

 Financial liabilities 
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost. 
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.  
 
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and 
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.  
 

1.10 Taxation 
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the 
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within 
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of 
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable 
purposes. 
 

1.11 Pensions benefits 
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') 
and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are 
held separately from those of the academy trust. 
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over 
employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level 
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government 
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded 
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is 
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the 
period to which they relate. 
 
The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy 
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities 
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent 
to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. 
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The 
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme 
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as 
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial 
activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme 
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate 
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets 
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains 
and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 
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1 Accounting policies (continued) 
 

1.12 Fund accounting 
General funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the objects of the 
Academy at the discretion of the Governors. 
 
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the 
DfE where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. 
 
Restricted funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the DfE.  
 

1.13 Agency Arrangements 
The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from DfE. Payments received from 
DfE and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the 
trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The trust can use up to 5% of the 
allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial activities. 
The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 25. 
 

  
  
2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement 

 
Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 
 

 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 
 
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of 
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in 
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, 
which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll 
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2025. Any differences between the 
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying 
amount of the pension liability. 
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2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (continued) 

 
 Critical areas of judgement 

Useful economic lives of tangible assets 
The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic 
lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually. 
They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological advancement, future 
investments, economic utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note 12 for the carrying amount 
of the property plant and equipment, and note 1.6 for the useful economic lives for each class of assets. 
  
There are no key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 

 
 
3 Donations and capital grants 

Group and Academy 
 

 Group Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
 funds funds 2025 2024
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 
 Capital grants - 15 15 16
 Other donations 6 3 9 5
 
          6 18 24 21
 
         

 
 
 Donations and capital grants 

Group and Academy 
 

 Academy Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
 funds funds 2025 2024
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 
 Capital grants - 15 15 16
 Other donations - 3 3 5
 
          - 18 18 21
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4 Funding for the academy trust’s educational operations  
 Group and Academy 

 Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
 funds funds 2025 2024

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 DfE / ESFA grants  
 General annual grant (GAG) - 1,690 1,690 1,690
 16-19 core education funding - 510 510 510
 Other DfE group grants -
 Pupil premium - 84

 
84 91

 Others - 14 14 110
 
          - 2,298 2,298 2,401
 
          Other government grants  
 Local authority grants - 8,610 8,610 5,843
 
            
 Other incoming resources  
 Other income - - - -
 
          Total funding - 10,908 10,908 8,244
 
         
   
  

 
 
 
 
  
 



CHARLTON PARK ACADEMY 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025 
 

 

34 
 

 
5 Other trading activities 

 
 

           Group 
 Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
 funds funds 2025 2024
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 
 Hire of facilities 182 -                   182 

- 
167

 Catering income 20 - 20 19
 Other income 1,939 - 1,939 1,403
 
          2,141 - 2,141 1,589
 
         

 Other trading activities 
Academy 

 

 Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
 funds funds 2025 2024
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 
 Catering income 20 - 20 19
 Other income 1,938 - 1,938 1,401
 
          1,958 - 1,958 1,420
 
           
6 Investment income  
         Group and academy Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
 funds funds 2025 2024
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 
 Short term deposits 44 - 44 56
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7 Expenditure  
         Group 
 Non-pay expenditure Total Total
 Staff costs Premises Other 2025 2024
 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 
 Academy’s educational operations  
 - Direct costs 7,341 504 949 8,794 7,462
 - Allocated support costs 768 1,150 1,208 3,126 3,615
 
            8,109 1,654 2,157 11,920 11,077
 
           

 Expenditure  
         Academy 
 Non-pay expenditure Total Total
 Staff costs Premises Other 2025 2024
 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000
 
 Academy’s educational operations  
 - Direct costs 7,341 504 949 8,794 7,462
 - Allocated support costs 768 1,143 989 2,900 3,432
 
            8,109 1,647 1,938 11,694 10,894
 
             
 Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:  2025 2024
  
           Group  £’000 £’000
 
 Fees payable to auditor for:  
 - Audit 21 20
 - Other services 5 4
 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,118 1,683
 Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 34 26
 
     
 Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:  2025 2024
  
           Academy  £’000 £’000
 
 Fees payable to auditor for:  
 - Audit 18 17
 - Other services 5 4
 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,111 1,676
 Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 34 26
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8 Charitable activities 
         Group 
 Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
 funds funds 2025 2024
 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
 Direct costs  
 Educational operations - 8,794 8,794 7,462
 
 Support costs  
 Educational operations 363 2,763              3,126 3,615
 
          363 11,557 11,920 11,077
 
         

 Analysis of support costs 2025 2024
 £'000 £'000
  
 Support costs  
 Support staff costs 768 732
 Depreciation 614 1,215
 Technology costs 235 212
 Premises costs               606 567
 Legal costs - 1
 Other support costs 865 841
 Governance costs 38 47
 
      3,126 3,615
 
     
 Charitable activities 
         Academy 
 Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
 funds funds 2025 2024
 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
 Direct costs  
 Educational operations - 8,794 8,794 7,462
 
 Support costs  
 Educational operations 144 2,756 2,900 3,432
, 
          144 11,550 11,694 10,894
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8 Charitable activities (continued) 

          Academy   
 Analysis of support costs 2025 2024
 £'000 £'000
  Support costs  
 Support staff costs 768 732
 Depreciation 607 1,208
 Technology costs 235 212
 Premises costs              536 563
 Legal costs - 1
 Other support costs                716 669
 Governance costs                  38 

- 
47

 
                  2,900 3,432
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9 Staff  
 
 Staff costs  
 Group and academy  
 Staff costs during the year were:  
 2025 2024
 £'000 £'000
 
 Wages and salaries 4,764 4,466
 Social security costs 542 427
 Pension costs 1,179 945
 
      Staff costs - employees 6,485 5,838
 Agency staff costs 1,588 1,163
 Staff restructuring costs 36 32
 
      8,109 7,033
 Staff development and other staff costs 52 54
 
      Total staff expenditure 8,161 7,087
 
     Staff restructuring costs comprise 
 Redundancy payments 

 
- -

 Severance payments 36 32
 
 36 32

 
  
 Severance payments 

 The academy trust paid 3 severance payment in the year, disclosed in the following bands: 
 
£0 - £25,000         -    3 
   

 Special staff severance payments 

 Special staff severance payments are amounts paid to employees outside of statutory and contractual 
requirements. Included in staff restructuring costs are special severance payments totalling £36k (2024: 
£23k).  Individually, the payments were £12k; £19k; and £5k. 
  

 Staff numbers  
 The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:  
 2025 2024
 Number Number
 
 Teachers  45 42
 Administration and support  85 87
 Management  4 4
 
                       134 133
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9 Staff (continued)  
   
 Higher paid staff  
 The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 

was: 
 

 2025 2024 
 Number Number

 £60,001 - £70,000 
 

11 9
 £70,001 - £80,000 2 -
 £80,001 - £90,000 1 2
 £120,001 - £130,000 1 1
 £220,001 - £230,000 - 1
 £230,001 - £240,000 1                        - 
 
      
 Key management personnel  
 The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the governors and the senior management 

team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and 
national insurance) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £565k
– 3 staff (2024: £607k – 5 staff). 
 
 

 

10 Governors’ remuneration and expenses 
 
One or more of the governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment 
with the academy trust.  The principal and other staff governors only receive remuneration in respect of services 
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not 
in respect of their services as governors.  
 
The value of governors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows: 
 
M Dale-Emberton (principal): 

 Remuneration £175,000 - £180,000 (2024: £170,000 - £175,000) 
 Consultancy & additional hours/duties £50,000 - £55,000 (2024: £45,000 - £50,000) 
 Employer's pension contributions £65,000 - £70,000 (2024: £55,000 - £60,000) 

 
J Firth (Staff): 

 Remuneration £0 - £5,000 (2024: £0 - £5,000) 
 Employer's pension contributions £nil (2024: £nil) 

 
The other staff Governors listed above only received remuneration for their role as a member of staff and the 
salaries have been aggregated as the Governors believe any further detailed breakdown would be prejudicial 
to the structure of the Governing Board. 

During the year, no payments were reimbursed or paid directly to governors (2024: £nil).  
 
Other related party transactions involving the governors are set out within the related parties note. 
 

 

11 Governors’ and officers’ insurance 
 The academy trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an 

alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and 
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions whilst on academy business, and provides 
cover up to £10m. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element form the overall cost 
of the RPA scheme. 
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 12 Tangible fixed assets 
Group  

 

 Land and 
buildings

ICT 
Equipment

Fixtures and 
fittings

Motor 
vehicles

Total

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
 Cost  
 At 1 September 2024 27,378 2,078 4,094 412 33,962
 Additions 286 333 277 - 896
 Disposals - (1,268) (1,228) - (2,496)
 
            At 31 August 2025 27,664 1,143 3,143 412 32,362
 
            Depreciation 
 At 1 September 2024 4,022 1,433 3,728 327 9,510
 Charge for the year 504 263 331 20 1,118
 Disposals - (1,268) (1,228) - (2,496)
 
            At 31 August 2025 4,526 428 2,831 347 8,132
 
            Net book value 
 At 31 August 2025 23,138 715 312 65 24,230
 
            At 31 August 2024 23,356 645 366 85 24,452
 
           

 
Additions included within land and buildings of £286k relate to groundworks and extensions during the year. 

Land and buildings include leased land valued at £6,034k (2024: £6,086k).  
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 12 Tangible fixed assets 

Academy 
 

 Land and 
buildings

ICT 
Equipment

Fixtures and 
fittings

Motor 
vehicles

Total

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
 Cost  
 At 1 September 2024 27,378 2,072 4,083 412 33,945

  Additions 286 333 277 - 896
 Disposals - (1,268) (1,228) - (2,496)
 
            At 31 August 2025 27,664 1,137 3,132 412 32,345
 
            Depreciation 
 At 1 September 2024 4,022 1,429 3,722 327 9,500
 Charge for the year 504 258 329 20 1,111
 Disposals - (1,268) (1,228) - (2,496)
 
            At 31 August 2025 4,526 419 2,823 347 8,115
 
            Net book value 
 At 31 August 2025 23,138 718 309 65 24,230
 
            At 31 August 2024 23,356 643 361 85 24,445
 
           

Additions included within land and buildings of £286k relate to groundworks and extensions during the year. 

Land and buildings include leased land valued at £6,034k (2024: £6,086k).  
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13 CHARLTON PARKSIDE 
 Included within the consolidated financial statements is Charlton Parkside, Company number 10829453. The 

company is limited by guarantee, of which Charlton Park Academy is the sole member. Charlton Parkside provides 
education support services to the Academy. The trading result of Charlton Parkside are as follows: 
 
 

  2025 2024
 £'000 £’000
 Income 189 169
 Depreciation (7) (7)
 Agency staff - -
 Administrative expenses (219) (177)
 ______ ______

 (37) (15)
 ______ ______

     

 The assets and liabilities of Charlton Parkside at 31 August were: 2025 2024
 £'000 £’000
 Fixed assets - 7
 Debtors - -
 Cash at bank  29 5
 Creditors (60) (6)
 ______ ______

 (31) 6
 ______ ______
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14  Debtors – Group  
 2025 2024

 £'000 £'000
 
 Trade debtors 455 211
 VAT recoverable 55 111
 Other debtors - -
 Prepayments and accrued income 238 982
 
      748 1,304
 
     

  Debtors – Academy   
 2025 2024
 £'000 £'000
 
 Trade debtors 455 211
 VAT recoverable 55 111
 Other debtors - -
 Prepayments and accrued income 238 982
 
      748 1,304
 
    15  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year – Group   
 2025 2024
 £'000 £'000
 
 Other loans 10 19
 Trade creditors 61 62
 Other taxation and social security - 100
 Other creditors 127 -
 Accruals and deferred income 210 164
 
      408 345
 
      Creditors: amounts falling due within one year - Academy  
 2025 2024
 £'000  £'000 
 
 Other loans 10 19
 Trade creditors 59 59
 Other taxation and social security - 100
 Other creditors 127 -
 Accruals and deferred income 152 161
 
      348 339
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16  Creditors: amounts falling due after one year – Group and Academy  
 2025 2024
 £'000 £'000
 
 Other loans - 10
 
     Analysis of loans  
 2025 2024
 £'000 £'000
 
 Wholly repayable within 5 years 10 29
 Less: included in current liabilities (10) (19)
 
      - 10
 
     
 Loan maturity 
 Debt due in one year or less 10 19
 Due in more than one year but not more than two years - 10
 Due in more than two years but not more than five years                           - -
 
      10 29
 
     
 

During the year ended 31 August 2016, the Academy received funding from Salix Finance Limited, this is in 
relation to CIF funding for the replacement roof and lighting grant.  
 
The DfE have a partnership programmes with Salix Finance Limited as part of the Academies Capital 
Maintenance Grants. 
 
The loans are 100% interest- free and are repaid using the savings expected from energy bills every March 
and September until the project has paid itself back. The Secretary of State has provided automatic consent 
for academies to enter into a loan agreement through Salix Finance Limited. 
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17 Funds  
 Group  
 Balance at Gains, Balance at  
 1 September losses and 31 August  
 2024 Income Expenditure transfers 2025  
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  
 Restricted general funds  
 General Annual Grant (GAG) - 2,200 (1,643) (557) -  
 Pupil premium - 84 (84) - -  
 Other DfE/ESFA grants - 14 (14) - -  
 Other government grants - 8,610 (8,610) - -  
 Other restricted funds  - 3 (3) -                     - 
 Pension reserve  (605) - (85) 690                     - 
 
             (605) 10,911 (10,439) 133                    - 
 
             Restricted fixed asset funds  
 DfE group capital grants - 15 - (15) -  
 General Fixed Assets 24,445 - (1,111) 896 24,230  
 Subsidiary – fixed assets 7 - (7) - -  
 
             24,452 15 (1,118) 881 24,230  
 
            

 Total restricted funds 23,847 10,926 (11,557) 1,014 24,230  
 
             Unrestricted funds  
 General funds 3,914 2,002 (144) (324) 5,448  
 Subsidiary funds (1) 189 (219) - (31)  
            Total unrestricted funds 3,913 2,191 (363) (324) 5,417  
 
            

 Total funds 27,760 13,117 (11,920)           690 29,647  
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17 Funds  
 Academy  
 Balance at Gains, Balance at  
 1 September losses and 31 August  
 2024 Income Expenditure transfers 2025  
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  
 Restricted general funds  
 General Annual Grant (GAG) - 2,200 (1,643) (557) -  
 Pupil premium - 84 (84) - -  

 Other DfE/ESFA grants - 14 (14) - -  
 Other government grants - 8,610 (8,610) -  -  
 Other restricted funds - 3 (3) - -  
 Pension reserve  (605) - (85) 690        - 

         
 (605) 10,911 (10,439) 133                  - 

         
 Restricted fixed asset funds 
 DfE group capital grants - 15                        -  (15) -  
 General Fixed Assets 24,445 -       (1,111) 896 24,230  

         
 24,445 15        (1,111) 881 24,230  

         

 Total restricted funds 23,840 10,926     (11,550) 1,014 24,230  

         
 Unrestricted funds 
 General funds 3,914 2,002         (144)   (324) 5,448  
          Total unrestricted funds 3,914 2,002         (144) (324) 5,448  

         

 Total funds 27,754 12,928      (11,694)                690 29,678  

            
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows. 

General Annual Grant: Income received from the DfE (formerly ESFA) to cover the normal running costs of the 
Academy. 
 
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the amount

of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2025. 

 
Pupil premium - money received from the DfE/ESFA 

 
Other DFE/ESFA grants: This includes Tutoring funding, Mental Health grant, recovery premium and other 
smaller DfE/ESFA grants. 
 Other government grants: This includes SEN funding, additional pupil premium, and DSG funding received from 
the Local Authority, teachers pay grant and teachers pension grant. 

DfE/ESFA capital grants - This includes the Devolved Formula Capital grant and the energy grant. 
  The transfer of funds relate to the purchase of fixed assets during the period as well as the excess spend of 
GAG being covered from unrestricted funds. 
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17 Funds (continued)  
    
 Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:  
   
        Group Balance at  Gains, Balance at  
 1 September  losses and 31 August  
 2023 Income Expenditure transfers 2024  
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  
 Restricted general funds  
 General Annual Grant (GAG)  2,200 (3,031) 831 -  
 Pupil premium - 91 (91) - -  
 Other DfE/ESFA grants - 110 (110) - -  
 Other government grants - 5,843 (5,843) - -  
 Other restricted funds - 5 (5) - -  
 Pension reserve  (663) - (25) 83 (605)
 
             (663) 8,249 (9,105) 914 (605)
 
             Restricted fixed asset funds  
 DfE group capital grants - 16 1  (17) -  
 General Fixed Assets 25,231 - (1,676) 890 24,445  
 Subsidiary – fixed assets 13 - (7) 1 7  
 
             25,244 16 (1,682) 874 24,452  
 
            

 Total restricted funds 24,581 8,265 (10,787) 1,788 23,847  
 
             Unrestricted funds  
 General funds 4,256 1,476 (114) (1,704) 3,914  
 Subsidiary funds 7 169 (176) (1) (1)  

      
            Total unrestricted funds 4,263 1,645 (290) (1,705) 3,913  
 
            

 Total funds 28,844 9,909 (11,077)                83 27,760  
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17 Funds (continued)  
    
 Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:  
   
        Academy Balance at  Gains, Balance at  
 1 September  losses and 31 August  
 2023 Income Expenditure transfers 2024  
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  
 Restricted general funds  
 General Annual Grant (GAG)  2,200 (3,031) 831 -  
 Pupil premium - 91 (91) - -  
 Other DfE/ESFA grants - 110 (110) - -  
 Other government grants - 5,843 (5,843) - -  
 Other restricted funds - 5 (5) - -  
 Pension reserve  (663) - (25) 83 (605)
 
             (663) 8,249 (9,105) 914 (605)
 
             Restricted fixed asset funds  
 DfE group capital grants - 16 1  (17) -  
 General Fixed Assets 25,231 - (1,676) 890 24,445  
 
             25,231 16 (1,675) 873 24,445  
 
            

 Total restricted funds 24,568 8,265 (10,780) 1,787 23,840  
 
             Unrestricted funds  
 General funds 4,256 1,476 (114) (1,704) 3,914  
      

            Total unrestricted funds 4,256 1,476 (114) (1,704) 3,914  
 
            

 Total funds 28,824 9,741 (10,894)                83 27,754  
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18 Analysis of net assets between funds  
 Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total 
 Funds General Fixed asset Funds 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 Fund balances at 31 August 2025 are 

represented by: 
 

 Tangible fixed assets - - 24,230 24,230 
 Current assets 5,477 348 - 5,825 
 Creditors falling due within one year (60) (348) - (408)  
 Creditors falling due after one year - - - -  
 Defined benefit pension liability - - - -  
 
           Total net assets 5,417 - 24,230 29,647 
 
          
 
 
   
 

 Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total 
 Funds General Fixed asset Funds 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are 

represented by: 
 

 Tangible fixed assets - - 24,452 24,452 
 Current assets 3,919 349 - 4,268 
 Creditors falling due within one year  (6) (339) - (345)
 Creditors falling due after one year  - (10) - (10)
 Defined benefit pension liability - (605) - (605)
 
           Total net assets 3,913 (605) 24,452 27,760 
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19 Pension and similar obligations  
 
 The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme 

England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Royal Borough of Greenwich. Both are multi-employer defined 
benefit schemes.  
 
The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS 
related to the period ended 31 March 2022. 
 

 

 Contributions amounting to £127k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2025 (2024: £nil) and are included 
within creditors 

 

 
 Teachers' Pension Scheme  
 
 Introduction  
 The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the 

Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers 
have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment. 
 

 

 
 The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage 

of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by 
public funds provided by Parliament.   
 

 

 
 Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme  
 The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in 

accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published 
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed 
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions. 
 
Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits 
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The 
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set 
by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The key elements of the 
valuation outcome are: 

 Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy). 
This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change 
in member benefits is needed. 

 Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for 
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions 
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a notional 
past service deficit of £39,800 million. 
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19 Pension and similar obligations (continued) 
 
   The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is due to be 

implemented from 1 April 2028. 
   

 The employer’s pension contributions paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £787k (2024: £588k). 
  
 A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website 

  
 Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy 

trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy 
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme. 
 

 Local Government Pension Scheme 

 The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. 
The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.11% for 
employers and 5.5% to 12.5% for employees. The estimated value of employer contributions for the forthcoming 
year is £377k. 
 
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event 
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department 
for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department of Education 
reaffirmed its commitments to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK. 
 

  

 
 Total contributions made  2025

3 
2024 

 £'000 £'000 
 
 Employer's contributions  341 358 
 Employees' contributions  107 112 
 
      Total contributions  48 470 
 
     

 Principal actuarial assumptions 2025 2024 
 % % 
 
 Rate of increase in salaries 3.70 3.85 
 Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.70 2.85 
 Discount rate for scheme liabilities 6.05 5.05 
 Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.70 2.85 
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19 Pension and similar obligations (continued)  
 

 The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.  The 
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 

 2025 2024  
 Years Years  
 Retiring today  
 - Males 19.8 19.2  
 - Females 23.1 22.7  
 Retiring in 20 years  
 - Males 21.6 20.6  
 - Females 25.0 24.2  
 
      
 Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows: 

 
 

 2025 2024  
 £'000 £'000  
 Discount rate - 0.1%  131 144  
 Mortality assumption + 1 year  274 228  
 Pension increases and deferred revaluation +0.1%  128 141  
 Salary increase +0.1%  7 6  
 
      

 Defined benefit pension scheme net liability  
 
   2025 2024  
   £'000 £'000  
 Scheme assets  7,891 7,035  
 Scheme obligations  (6,844) (7,640) 
 
       Net asset/(liability)  1,047 (605) 
   (1,047) - 
    
 Total asset /(liability) recognised  - (605) 
      
 The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2025 2024  
 Fair value Fair value  
 £'000 £'000  
 Equities 4,261 3,751  
 Other bonds 2,762 1,604  
 Cash 237 151  
 UK and overseas Unit Trusts - 819  
 Property 631 710  
 
       Total market value of assets 7,891 7,035  
 
      The actual return on scheme assets was £642,000 (2024: £648,000). 
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19 Pension and similar obligations (continued)  
 

 Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 2025 2024 
 £'000 £'000 
 
 Current service cost 392 352 
 Interest income  (360) (331) 
 Interest cost 394 357 
 Administration expenses - 5 
 
       Total operating charge 426 383 
 
      

 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2025 2024 
 £'000 £'000 
 
 At 1 September 2024 7,640 6,783 
 Current service cost 392 352 
 Interest cost 394 357 
 Employee contributions 107 112 
 Actuarial (gain)/loss (1,455) 234 

 Benefits paid  (234) (198) 
 
       At 31 August 2025 6,844 7,640 
 
      

 Changes in the fair value of the academy trust’s share of scheme 
assets 

 2025
 

2024 
 £'000 £'000 
 
 At 1 September 2024 7,035 6,120 
 Interest income 360 331 
 Actuarial loss/(gain)  282 317 
 Employer contributions 341 358 
 Employee contributions 107 112 
 Benefits paid  (234) (198) 
 Effect on non-routine settlements and administration expenses  - (5) 
 Restriction to scheme assets  (1,047) - 
 
       At 31 August 2025 6,844 7,035 
 
      Restriction of pension scheme assets 

 Included within the pension assets above is an “asset ceiling adjustment”. The asset ceiling is the present value 
of the economic benefits that the employee can recover from the plan, such as reduced contributions or cash 
refunds. It is deemed for the Trust that the future costs expected for the employers contributions will outweigh 
the future service costs and therefore there is no economic benefit to the Trust and therefore the asset value is 
reduced to zero.  
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20 Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities - Group  
 2025 2024 
 £'000 £'000 
 
 Net income for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial 

activities) 1,197 (1,167)
 

 

 Adjusted for:  
 Capital grants from DfE and other capital income  (15) (16) 
 Investment income receivable  (44) (56) 
 Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 51 (1) 
 Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 34 26 
 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,118 1,683 
 Decrease/(Increase) in debtors  556 (574)
 (Decrease)/Increase in creditors  72 (118)
 
       Net cash provided by operating activities 2,969 (223) 
 
      
 
 
 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities - Academy  
 2025 2024 
 £'000 £'000 
 
 Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of 

financial activities) 1,234 (1,153)
 

 
 Adjusted for:  
 Capital grants from DfE and other capital income  (15) (16) 
 Investment income receivable  (44) (56) 
 Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 51 (1) 
 Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 34 26 
 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,111 1,676 
 Profit on disposal of fixed assets - (1) 
 (Increase)/decrease in debtors  556 (574) 
 (Decrease)/Increase in creditors  18 (120) 
 
       Net cash provided by operating activities 2,945 (219) 
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21 Analysis of changes in net funds - Group  
 1 September 

2024 
Cash flows 31 August 

2025
 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 

 Cash 2,964 2,113 5,077 
 Loans falling due within one year  (19) 9  (10)
 Loans falling due after more than one year  (10) 10  -
 
         2,935 2,132 5,067 
 
        Analysis of changes in net funds - Academy  
 1 September 

2024 
Cash flows 31 August 

2025
 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 
 Cash 2,959 2,089 5,048 
 Loans falling due within one year  (19) 9  (10)
 Loans falling due after more than one year  (10) 10  -
 
         2,930 2,108 5,038 
 
        
22 Capital commitments  
 

  2025 2024 
 £'000 £'000 
 
  Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts 17 71 
 
      
 The capital commitment in the current year relates to a Hub and Tutor room swing contracted to but not 

undertaken as at 31 August 2025. 

 
 
23 Related party transactions 
 
 Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from local 

public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the governors 
have an interest. 
 
Refer to Note 10 regarding transactions with certain governors' remuneration and expenses.  
 
The following related party transaction took place in the period of account.  

  
J Zarb, a Governor who resigned at the start of the year, has a close family relation to the director of Zarb 
Limited, a company providing IT consultancy services to the Trust.  Due to the resignation of the Governor there 
are no related party transaction to report in the current year, however costs in the prior year totalled £45k. 
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24 Members' liability 
 
 Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of 

it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member, such 
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases 
to be a member. 
 

25 Agency arrangements 
 
 The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for DfE. In the accounting period 

ending 31 August 2025 the academy trust received £5,707 (2024: £5,755) and disbursed £5,707 (2024: £5,755) 
from the fund. A creditor of £nil (2024: £nil) is recognised in the balance sheet.  
 
  


